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1. Name
2= CEIVED
historic Tuolumne County Courthouse i 5 »
. JUN % § 71501
and/or common
- e uriv
2. Location
street & number 41 West Yaney Avenue — not for publication
city, town Sonora —_vicinity of congressional district 14
state California 95370 code 06 county Tuolumne code 109
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
____district _X_ public X__ occupied —_agriculture —___ museum
_X_ building(s) ___ private —_ unoccupied — commercial — park
— structure — both — work in progress — educational —_ private residence
____site Public Acquisition Accessible ____entertainment —__religious
— object —_in process - yes: restricted _X_government ____scientific
— being considered —X yes: unrestricted — industrial — transportation
—__no — military — other:
4. Owner of Property
name County of Tuolumne
street & number 2 South Green St.
5. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Tuolumne County Recorder's Office
street & number 2 S. Green St.
city, town Sonora state California 95370
6. Representation in Existing Surveys
title has this property been determined elegible? ___yes ___ no
date —federal ____state ___county ___ local

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description

Cmdition Check one Check one
7 excellent ___deteriorated 7 unaltered JL- original site
____good riiinft nitprAri moved rlate
fair unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Tuolumne County Courthouse is located in the center of a square
ock in downtown Sonora bounded b orth Norlin_St,, West Yaney Av
orth g‘reen gtreet ang %\/est gacksox %treet. It is a three—stor)); éu?wﬁ’\g
with clock tower on the north side. The central block measuros approximately 60'
by 90" feet. Centered on the south side of the building is a three-story
ell measuring 35 by 30 feet at the base and included as part of the

overall dimensions of the building. The walls of the first floor,
originally called the basement, are concrete scored to imitate stone.

The second and third story walls are buff colored Roman pressed brick.
Colusa sandstone is used for all water tables, lintels on the first floor,
as accents to entrances on West Yaney Avenue and North Green Street, as
trim around two round windows on the east side of the first floor and
as a decorative element between the first and second floors where concrete
and brick would otherwise meet. All windows designed to open are double hung.

The main entrance to the Tuolumne County Courthouse is via two curved
concrete staircases flanking the first floor entry on West Yaney Avenue,
The steps lead to a balconied entry portico supported by two groups of
three stone Corinthian columns and two half-columns mounted flush on
the north wall. Two copper-sheathed oak doors with beveled glass panes
provide egress to the second floor from a recessed arched alcove. This
elevation (northern) is the most ornate because the building's main
entrance is there. On the third floor of the northern elevation is a
fan light window with door unit leading from a hallway onto a landing
area that is the roof of the main entrance below. The clock tower rises
88 feet above street level on the northern elevation and features small
windows with balconies on three sides, clocks facing all four points of
the compass and finally a bell that still chimes every hour covered by
a small dome. A weathervane sits atop the dome.

The western elevation is notable for the introduction of three
arched windows. The southern elevation features an ell with recessed
areas on the second floor where windows could have gone. Instead, they
are filled in with bricks, giving added fire protection to the valuable
papers on file in the Recorder's office. There is a utility entrance
on the first floor of the ell. The eastern elevation is almost completely
obscured by evergreen trees; however, this side features two round windows
framed in sandstone. The windows flank an entrance to the first floor.
The roof of the Tuolumne County Courthouse is covered with sheets of
red metal which was channeled and in some places (ridges) embossed to
imitate terra cotta tile. The building's architecture can be characterized
as beij classical revival.

quments of note in the interior of the second and third floors are
floor tiles imBorted from Europe, wainscoting fashioned from local
(Columbia) marble, 16-foot ceilings and the continuation (from the first
floor) of a cast iron stairway with local marble treads. AIll doors
leading into offices and rooms on all three levels are pine with a single
gﬂass pane and wood panels below. There are three built-in safes in
the building. The building cost $105,000 to comgtBte>: including furnishings.
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A concrete retaining wall surrounds the property and abuts sidewalks
on all four sides of the property. Portions of the south and north
walls and all of the west wall are capped with a decorative wrought
iron fence. Iron lamp posts are mounted on the southeast and northeast
corners of the wall. Four evergreen trees planted in 1930 replaced
original palm trees along the east side aIthouHh one original palm
can be found in the southeast corner of the ell.

The only alterations of significance occured from 1967 to 1970

when three offices were given mezzanines by the insertion of a floor
halfway between original 16-foot ceilings and original floors.



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify beiow
prehistoric archeology-prehistoric __ community planning landscape architecture religion
1400-1499 archeology-historic conservation law ____science
1500-1599 __ agriculture economics literature sculpture
1600-1699 X architecture ____education military ___social/
1700-1799 art engineering music humanitarian
JL 1800-1899 commerce exploration/settlement philosophy theater
~X.1900- communications industry X politics/government transportation
- invention other (specify)
Specific dates 1898-1900 Builder/Architect Wm. Mooser and Son, Architects

statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Since its completion in the Spring of 1900, the Tuolumne County
Courthouse has symbolized county government to the residents of this
part of California's Gold Rush country. The building, designed by
the San Francisco architectural firm of Vitn, Mooser and Son, housed all
departments of Tuolumne County government. clerk, assessor, treasurer,
tax collector, recorder, superior court, sheriff, district attorney,
surveyor, superintendent of schools, coroner and public administrator.
It replaced a tvro-story wooden frame building that was the original
courthouse and that had stood on the same site since 1853. In choosing
the plans of Vim. Mooser and Son architects over nine others that had
been submitted, the Tuolumne County Board of Supervisors began a con-
struction project that was destined to provide larger, more efficient
working areas for county employees and a building where valuable
records and documents could be stored with the assurance of safety
and protection from fire. The public, which had voiced concern over the
delapidated condition of the original courthouse and its lack of
sufficient space, gained a handsome and imposing building that endures
today, 82 years later, as an integral part of county government and with
its architectural integrity virtually infeSctr dThis architecturally
significant structure, a landmark in the heart of downtown Sonora, is
part of the legacy of Wm. Mooser,and.?on, architects, a respected
Northern California firm. Wm. Mooser, Jr., the principal, was the
son of Vim, Mooser, a native of Switzerland who died in 1896. The
younger Mooser was San Francisco City Architect and is credited with

organizing The City's Bureau of Buildings.
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